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Attorneys for Plaintiff
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

COHEN(Fdefendant”) and the United States Attorney’s Office for
the Central District of California and the U.S. Department of

Justice, Tax Division (collectively the “USAO”) in the above-

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ). No. CR CR 13 O 04C
Plaintiff, . } PLEA AGREEMENT FOR DEFENDANT
. ) AARON COHEN
v. ). '
: : )
AARON COHEN, )
Defendant. )
)
1. ~This constitutes the plea agreement between AARON
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‘Gaptichéd n(:éée'.v ,'_This" agteement is Linited to the Usno and eaiinot
bind'any other federal,.state or lqcal prosecuting,'
admdnistretive or regulatory authorities and is eubjeéttto the
approval Qf the'Depertment ef.Juetice,.Tax Division.
|  DEFENDANT’ S OBLIGATIONS
'2.. Defenddnt agrees to: |

| na) Gite uplthe right to indictment by a‘grand jurYdand'
at tne eérliest opportunity requested by the USAO andiprovided by
‘the Court, to atpear’and'piead guilty to a one count Information

charging a Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371 in the form atteched to

this agreement or a substantially similar form.

b) Not to contest facts agreed to in this agreement.

¢) Abide by all agreements regarding sentencing factors
contained in this agreement.'

d) Appear for all court appearances, surrender as
ordered for service of sentence, obey all conditions of any. bond
and obey any other ongoing court order in this matter.

e) Not commit ény.crime; however, offenses which woulde
be excluded for sehtending purposes under U.S.S.G. § 4Al.2(c) are
not: w1th1n the scope of this agreement

| f) Be truthful at all times with Pretrial Serv1ces, the
U.S. Probation Office, and the Court.
g9) Pey the applicéble specialvassessment at or before

the time of seritencing unless defendant lecks the ability to pay
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and submits a.dcmplétéd_fiﬁéﬁéiél'étatéﬁéht‘(féfm OBD—SOQO)ito
the USAO_pﬁior”to sentencing.
| h) Not séékithe discharge of any. restitution
obligatiﬁn, in whole or ih part}'in any éreseﬁt orAfutUre
bankruptcy'proéeeding.fv |
3; . Defendant fﬁrther agrees to coOperate fully with the
_USAO, the Interhal'Re§éﬁueVService, and,_as_dirééted by the USAO,
any other federal, state,lIocal;vor.foreign'proseéuting;
enforcément, administraﬁive, or regulatory authority. This
cooperation requires defendant to:
a) Respond truthfully and completely to all qﬁeétiéhs
that may be put to defehdant, whether in inteiviews} before a
grand jﬁry, or at any trial.or other couft proceeding.

b) Attend aIl'meetings, grand jury sessiomns, trials or

other proceedings at which defendant's presence is requested by.

the USAO or pompelled by subpoena or court order. .

 c) Producé volﬁntérilyvall‘documents, recprds, or other
tangible evidencé relating to matteré about which the USAO, or
‘its designee, inquires.

4. For purposes of this agreementﬁ‘(l) “Cooperation

Information” shall mean any statements made, or ddcuments,

records, tangible evidence, or other information provided, by
defendant pursuant-to,defendant's cooperatioﬁ under this

agreement; and (2) “Plea Information” shall mean any statements
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made by deféndant, undef oath, at the guiLEY-pléé'ﬁééfiﬁg sAd the
agreea-tobfactual_basis-stétement in this agreement.

DEFENDANT’ S ‘OTHER OBLIGATIONS

5. 'Défendant also agrees:
| a) To cooperate with the IRS in.the civil examination,
‘determination, assessment and collection ofAiﬂcome taxeé’relatéd
to defendanﬁ’s 2006 throughizoil_income tax ;etﬁrns:and any

related corporate/entity tax returns, and further agrees not to

conceal, transfer, of»dissipate funds or property that could be

|l used to satisfy such taxes, penalties and interest.

b) To sign Closing Agreements with‘the‘iRS prior td the
time of'seﬁtencihé for the years 2006 through 2011, correctly
repérting inbome_and‘deductions for these years. Further, if
requeéted to do so by the IRS, provide the IRS with information
regarding thebyears covered by the Closing Agreements, and will
make his best ‘efforts to pfomptly pay all additional taxes,
penalties and interest assessed by the IRS as well as any
additioﬁal'émounts détermined-by the IRS to be owing;

- ) That defendant is liable'fCr-the_penalty impééed by

the Internal Revenue Code, 26-U.S,C. §’6663, on the taxes set

forth in paragraph 18, plus on the tax on the net incbme,on all

funds held in foreign bank accounts for the calendar years 2006,
2007, 2008, 2009, 2010_and 20112 Defendant agrees that a civil',

penalty under 26 U.S.C. § 6663 may be assessed-against him."
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d) To glve up any and all objectlons that could be

asserted to the Examlnatlon D1v151on of the IRS rece1v1ng

materials or 1nformatlon obtalned during the criminal

inVestigation of thiSfmatter,'including materials and information
obtalned through grand jury subpoenas

‘&) That nothlng in thls agreement shall preclude or bar

the IRS from the assessment and/or collection. of any addltlonal

tax_liability, including interest andipenalties;.determined'toIbe

due and'owing from defendant by the IRS for 2006, 2007, 2008,

2009, 2010 and 2011.

£) That; in order tO'resolvesdefendsnt’s ciﬁil
liahilfty for‘failing.to file Reports of Foreign_Bank and
Financial_Accounts, Forms'TD F‘90;22.1, and other foreign
information reporting obiigations under United States law, for

tax years 2006 through 2011, defendant w1ll pay a fifty percent:

‘penalty with respect to his portlon of the funds held in

undeclared offshore accounts for the ‘one year ‘with the hlghest
aggregate balance in the accounts for calendar years 2006 through

2011, and agrees to pay this sum of money prior to sentencing to

the United States Treasury, through the U.S. Department of

Justice, ‘Tax Division. The parties agree that defendant. and
Isaac Cohen each had a.fifty percent interest in the funds held
in the undeclared offshore‘acoounts described in the statement of

facts provided in Attachment’A.
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THE _USAS'S OBLIGATIONS
6. The USAO agrees to:
a) Not contest facts agreed to in thls agreement.

b) Abide by all agreements regardlng sentenc1ng factors

‘contained in this agreement

'c) At the tlme of. sentenc1ng, prov1ded that defendant

demonstrates an acceptance of respon81b111ty for the offense up

'to andgincluding the time of sentericing, to recemmend a two-level

reduction in the applicable sentencing guideline offense level,

»tpursuant to U.S,S.G.-§ 3E1.1, and an additional one-level

reduction_if available under that section.

d) Not further criminally prosecute defendant fdr-anyv

‘additional violations known to the USAO at the time of the piea,

arising out of the information provided by the;defendant, and

defendant’s conduct (i) described in the Information or'(ii)"

déScribed in the statement of facts provided in Attachment A.
.Defendant understands that the USAO is free to prosecute

' defendant for any other unlawful past conduct or any unlawful

conduct that occurs after the date of this agreement. ~Defendant

understands that at the time of sentencing the Court may consider

|| any relevant conduct related to the crime(s) aet forth herein in

determining the applicable Sentencing Guidelines range, the
propriety and extent of any departure from that range, and the

sentence to be imposed after consideratiOn of the Sentencing’
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Guiidelineés and all ¢Ehéf’réléVéﬁE”féétOfs under 18 U.s.C. §
3553(a). | EEE

e) Not présecute.Isaac'Cohen fof any_Violatibn known tp »
the USAO at the time of thisiplea'arising_qut of the infbrmation
proved by tﬁe defendanf, and defendant’s conduct (i) desciibed in
the Information or (ii) described in fhe statement of facts

provided in Attachment A. Defendant'understands that the USAO is|

'freé to prosecute Isaac Cohen for any other unlawful past conduct

or any unlawful conduct that occurs after the date of this
agreement.
7. The USAO further adrees:

a) Not to offér as evidehce in its case-in-chief in the

aboVe—captioned case or any other prosecution that may be brought

against defendant by the USAO, or in connection with any

sentencing proceeding in any case that may be brought against

l defendant by the USAO, any'Cooperation Information. Defendant

agréesh however,‘that the USAO may use.both Cooperation
Information and flea Infofmation: (lyito obtain énd pursue leads
tb other evidgnce, which evidenCevmay be used for ahy purpoée,
including any prosecution.of,défendant, (2} to cross—examine

defendant-should,defendant testify, or to‘rebﬁt any evidence,

‘argument or representations made by defendant or a witness called

by defendant in ahy trial, sentencing hearing, or other court
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prédéediﬁg, and (3) in any ériminal prosééution of déféndént fér

false statement, obstruction of justice, or perjury

b) Not to use Cooperation Information against defendant
at sentenCing for the purpose of determining the applicable
guideline range including the appropriateness of an upward
departure, or the sentence to be imposed, and to recommend to the |
Court that Cooperation Information not be used in determining the
applicable guideline range or7the'sentence to be imposed.

Defendant understands, however, that Cooperation Information will

.be disclosed to the probation office and the Court, ‘and that the

'Court may use this information for the purposes set forth in

U.8.5.G. § 1B1.8(b) and for determining the sentence to be -
imposed. A

c) In connection with defendant’s sentencing, to bring

to the Court’s attention’'the nature and extent of defendant’s

cooperation.

d) If the USAO determines, in its exclusive judgment,
that defendant has both complied with defendant’s obligations
under this agreement'and provided substantial assistance to law
enforcement in the‘prosecution or investigation of another
("substantial assistance"), to nove the Court pursuant‘to
U.3.5.G. § 5K1 1 to fix an offense level and corresponding
guideline range below that otherWise dictated by the sentenCing

guidelines,_and to recommend a sentence within this reduced
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randé ' Deféndanf underStands'thaf heée cannot Withdraﬁ his plea oi
guilty 1f thls Office does not file a ‘motion for a downward
departure. Defendant further understands that thls Offlce has
not made. a determination as of thlS'date whether the facts of
this case-presents.circumstances’deserving of a downward

ldeparture;

DEFENDANT’ S UNDERSTANDINGS REGARDING SUBSTANTIAL'ASSISTANCE
8. Defendant‘understands the foiloWing:.

a) Any kndwindly false or misleading statement by
‘defendant will subject defendant'to prosecution for.false
statement} obsuruction of justice,'and perjury and will
epnstitufe a breach by-defendant of this agreement.

b) Nothing in this agreement requires'the USAO or any
other.prosecutingvor law enforcement agencyvto adcept'any
cboperation or assistance that defendant.may offer, or to use it
in any particuiar way. |

cf Defendant cannot w1thdraw defendant’s gullty plea if
the USAQ does not make a motlon pursuant to U.S8.8.G. §-5K1.1 for
a reduced guideline range or if the USAO makes such a motion and
the Court does not Qrant it or if the Court_grants such aiUéAO
motion but elects to sentence'above the reduced range; o

d) At this time the USAO makes no agreement or
representation‘as to whether:any coeperation that defendant has

provided or intends to provide constitutes substantial
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assistance. The decision whether defendant has provided
substantial a531stance will rest solely w1thin the excluSive
judgment of the USAO.

e). The USRO’ s determination of whether defendant has
provided substantial‘assistance will not depend in'any way on
whether the government prevails at any trial or court hearlng in
which’ defendant testifies or in which the government otherwise
presents 1nformation_result1ng from defendant’s cooperation.

| NATURE OF THE OFFENSE

9.  Defendant understands that for defendant_to be guilty

of the crlme charged in- count One, (a violation of Title 18,

United. States Code, Section 371) the follow1ng must be true

a) Beginning in or about the’ 19905 and continuing
through in or about 2011,‘there'was an agreement between.two'or
more persons to defraud the United States by impeding, impairing,
obstructing, and'defeating the lawful functions and duties of the

Internal Revenue-Service (“*IRS”), through deceitful and dishonest

means; -

"b) Defendant became a member of the conspiracy knowing

its object and intending to help accomplish it, and

c) One of the members of the conspiracy performed at

- least one overt act for the purpose of carrying out the

conspiracy.

10
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| Défehdant admnits thet deféndant is, in fact, guilty of'this

offense as described innCount One‘of.fhe information.AV
- PENALTIES AND RES.TI_TUTION.. ‘

- 10. Defendant understanngthat the statutory maximum
sentence thaf the Court.can impose for a. violation of Title 18,
vUnited States Code, Section 371 is: five years.imprisonment;‘av
three'year period of supervised release;\a'fine of»$250;000'or '
tWice the amount of gross gain‘or gross loss resulting from the
offense, whichever is greater; and a mandatory‘special assessment
of $100.’ Defendant agrees to.pay’the special assessment at or
'before the time of’sentencing.
| 11, Defendant understands7and agrees that thedCourt: (a)
nay order.defendant to pay restitdtion in the form of any
additional taxes, interest and'oenalrieslﬁhat defendant owes.to
the United States based upon theocountdof convicrion snd any
relevant conduct; (b) may order defendant to pay snyfadditional_
fines that defendant owes to the United States; and (c) must
order defendant to pay the costs of prosecution, which may be in_d
addition~to‘the statutory maximum fine stated above, The_parties
agree tnat-the resritution that should be ordered is $66(660;

12. The parties~further agree that the tax loss,determined
‘for criminal‘purposes is not»binding_for civil purposes and is

- exclusive of civil penalties -and interest.

11
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13. 'Déféhdaht uﬁdérétanas‘that‘subefviséd release is &
Aperiod”of'time following imprisonment during which defendant wfll ’
be subject to various festrictions and'requirements. Defendant
‘understands that if defendant- v1olates one or more of the
condltlons of any superv1sed release 1mposed, defendant may be
=returned to prlson for all or part of the term of superVISed
release, which could result in defendant serviné_a total term of
imbriSonment greater'thanuthe Statutofy maximun stated above.

14. Defendant also understands that, by pleading guilty,
defendant may be giving up valuable government benefits and
Avaluable civic rights, such as the rlght to vote, the right to
possess a firearm," the.rlght to hold office, and the.right to
serve on a jury. Defendant further understands that the
oonviction in this case may subject defendant to various
collateral consequences, inolud;ng but not limited to,
deportation,_revocation-of probation, parole, or supervised
release in another case, and suspension or revocation of a
professionai license.k Defendant understands-that unantioipated .
collateral consequences'will not‘serve'as grounds to withdraw.
defendant’s guilty plea.

15; Defendant understands that, if defendant is not a
United States citizen; the‘felony conviotion in this case may
subject defendant to remo&al, also known as deportation, which

may, under some circumstances, be mandatory. The Court cannot,

12 -
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aiid defendant’s attoiney also may not be ible tb, adVise
defendant fully regardlng the 1mm1gratlon consequences of the
.felony conviction in th;s_case. ‘Defendant understands ‘that by
_entering'a‘guilty plea defendant waives any claim that unexpected
»immigration_consequences may render defendantfs-guilty plea
in&alid. | | |
FACTUAL BASTS -

~le. Defendant and tne USAO agree and'stipulate to the-
statement of facts prov1ded in Attachment A Wthh is attached
hereto and 1ncorporated by reference herein. The statement of
facts 1ncludes facts suff1c1ent to support a plea of guilty to
‘the charge described in this plea agreement. It is not meant to
be a complete recitation of all facts relevant to the underlying
criminal conduct or all facts known to defendant that relate toi
that conduct.’ The parties stipulate'that the conduct of
defendant referred to in Attachment A hereto violated 18 U.S.C.
§ 371 as charged in Count One of the Information.

SENTENCING FACTORS

'17. Defendant understands in determining defendantfsd
sentence the.Court isirequired to consider'the factors‘set forth
in 18 U.5.C. § 3553(a)(1)—(7); including the kinds of sentence
and sentenc1ng range establlshed under the United States
Sentencing Guidelines (“U.S.S.G.” or‘“Sentenc1ng Guldellnes Y.

Defendant understands that the Sentencing Guidelines are only

13
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advisory, thaﬁ defendant cannot have any éxpéctation of réeceiving

a sentence within the Sentencing'Guideline_range; and that after

1censidering the Sentencing'Guidelines and the other § 3553 (a)

factors, the Court will'be>free to exercise its discretion to

impose any sentence it finds appropriate up to the maximum set by |

statute for the ¢crime of conviction.

18. Defendant and the USAO agree and stipulate to the

following applicable sentencing guideline factors under the

November 2012 Guideline ‘Sentencing Manual and the Suﬁreme Court

a)

‘holding in United States v. Booker:

Tax Loss: The relevant actual, probable, or

intended tax loss under Section 2T1.1 of the

Sentencing Guidelines resulting from. the offense

committed iﬁ this case and all relevant conduct  is

.the tax loss associated with defendantfs

‘undeclared accounts at Bank A in Israel. The

parties agree that the tax loss is more than

$30,000, but less than $80,000 (exclusive of

.interestland penalties) for an Offense Level of
14.  See U.S.S.G. §§ 2T1.1 and 2T4.1.

'Sophisticated Means: The offense involved

sophisticated means, which results in a two-level

offense increase. See U.S.S.G. § 2T1.1(b)(2).

14
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Thé‘ﬁéftiéé égréé that thé adjustienits for “aggravating .
rolé” and “mitigating role” under U.S;S;G. §S 3B1,l,andn3Bl.2 are
not applicablg. Defendant and the‘USAO;reserve the right to
argueAthatgadditional specific offensé'charécteristigs,

adjustments, and departures under the Sentencing Guidelines are

-appropriate.

19. Defendant undérsténds that there is no agreement as to
defendant’s criﬁinal histoty or criminal histgry‘category.
.20, The stipulations in this agreeﬁent_do not bind either
the United'Statéé’Probation Office or the Court.. The Court will
detérminelthe fégts and calgulations relevaﬁt.to sentencing.

Both defendant and the USAO are free to: (a) éupplement the facts

stipulated to in this agreement by supplying relevant information |

to the United States Probation-Offiée‘and the Court, (b) corréct

any and all factual misstatements relating to the calculation of

the sentence, and (c) argue on appeal and collateral review that

the Court’s sentencing calculations are not error, although each

party agreeé to maintain its view that the calculations in
paragraph 18 are consistent with the facts of this case.
21. Defendant understands that if the Court finds facts or

reaches cohqlusions different from those in any stipulation

contained in this agreement, defendant cannot, for that reason

alone, withdraw defendant’s guilty plea.

15
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22.. By pleading guilty, defendant gives up the following.
‘rights: | .
| a) The right to persist in a plea of not guilty.

.b)~ The riéht to a speedy and publiC'trial‘hy jury.

c) The right to the assistance of eounsel at trial,
1nclud1ng, lf defendant could not afford an attorney, the right
to have the Court appOint one for defendant. In this regard,
defendant understands that, despite his plea of guilty, he
retains the‘rlght_to be represented by counsel at every-other
stage of the proceedings

- d) The right to be presumed innocent and to have the
‘burden of ‘proof placed on the government to prove defendant
guilty. beyond a reasonable doubt.

e) The right to confront ‘and cross- examlne w1tnesses
against,defendant,

f) The right, if defendant wished, to testify on
defendant’s own behalf and present.evidenée in opposition to the
charges, including the right to call.vitnesses and to subpoena
those'witnesses to teStify.

- g) The rightbnot to be compelled to testify} and, if-
defendant chose not. to testify or present evidence,-tohhave that -

' choice not be used against defendant.

16
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h) Any and all 7ights to purdué any affifmative
defensee; Fourth Amendment_ot Fifth Amendment claims, and other
'pretrial‘motions that have been filed or could be filed.

WAIVER OF APPEAL QF CONVICTION

23. vDefendant understands that;‘with the_exception'of an
appeal based on a claim that defehdant’s guilty plea wasl”
involuntary, by pleading_guilty defeﬁdant is waiving andléiving
up any right'te appeal defendant’s conVictien on the offense to

which defendant is pleading guilty.

:LIMITED_MUTUAL WAiVER QF APPEAL AND COLLATEﬁAL ATTACK

24. Defendant agreesathat, provided the Court determines>
'that-theatotalvoffense level is 13 or below, aftef making
adjustments for acceptance of responéibility under U.8.8.G. 'S
3El.1 bat‘prior to any departure ander U}S.S{G; § SKi;l, and
1mposes a sentence within or below the range correspondlng to the
determlned total offense level and the crlmlnal hlstory category
calculated by the Court, defendant gives up the right to appeal
all of the following: (a) the‘precedures and calculatione used to
‘deterﬁine and_impose an? portion of the sentence; (b) the term of
imprisonment impoaed by the Court; (c) the fine imposed by the
court, prov1ded it 1is within the statutory max1mum,b(d) the
.amount and terms of any restltutlon order, provided tt requlres
payment of no more than $66,660; (e) the term of probatlon>or

supervised release imposed byvthe Court, provided it is within

17
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the statutofy maximiii; and (£) any oF "the' £6116wiiiy conditions of
probation or‘supervised release inposed by the Court: ther
standard-conditione set forth in General<0rdere-318, 01—05,
and/or 05—02 of this Qourt;.the drug testing conditions mandated

by 18 U.S.C. §§ 3563(a) (5) and 3583(d); and the alcohol and drug

use conditions authorized by 18 U.S;C. §_3563(b)(7).

25. The USAO agrees that, provided (a) all portions of the
sentence. are at or'below the statutory maximum spepified above,
(b) the Court calculates the offense level to be used for

selectlng a sentenClng range under the Sentenc1ng Guldellnes to .

‘be 13 or above prior to any departure under U.8.8.G. § 5K1. 1, and

(c) the Court 1mposes ‘a term of 1mprlsonment within or above the
range corresponding to the offense level calculated after any
downward departure under U.S.S,G. § 5K1.1 and the criminal

history‘category‘caloulated by the Court, the USAO gives up its

vrlght to appeal any portlon of the sentence, with the exceptlon

that the USAO reserves the rlght to appeal the amount of

.restitutiOn ordered if that amount is less than»$66,660.

RESULT OF WITHDRAWAL'OF GUILTY PLEA
26, Defendant agrees that if, after-entering guilty pleas
pursuant to this agreement, defendant seeks to withdraw and
sueceeds in withdrawing defendant’s guilty pleas on any basis

other than a claim and finding that entry into this plea

agreement was involuntary, then (a) the USAO will_be relieved of

18
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a1l of its 6bli‘<ja£idﬁs uﬁder this é{gféemént; and (b) should the
6SAO choose to pursue any charge orﬂéﬁy‘civil,'administrative,_or
'fegulatory action that waS-eithef dismissed or not filed as a
result Qf thié agréeméﬁt, then (i)vany applicable sfatute of‘
‘limitations will be folled between the date 6f'defendant’s-
signing of thisvégreemeht'and'the filing commehcing any,sﬁéh
aqtion; and (ii) défendant waives and givés up all defenses based |
oﬁ the staﬁhté of iiﬁitations,vany claim of pré—indictment delay,
or any speedy trial claim wifh respect'to any such'action, except
_to the extent fhat sﬁch.defenses“existed as of the date of

defendént’s signing this.agreemeht.

RESULT OF VACATUR, REVERSAL OR SET-ASTDE
27. Defendant agrees that if thé count‘of'conviction is
vacated, reversed, orléet aside, both the USAO and defendant wili
be released from all their obligations>undér this agreement.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF AGREEMENT

28. This agreement is effectiﬁe upon signatufe and
exeéutibn by defendant, defendant’s counsel, and an Assistant
United Statés'Attorney.

| o BREACH OF AGREEMENT

29. Defendant agrees that if defendant, at any time after
-the signaturé of this“agreemént and-éxecuinn of all réquired
certificafions byidefendant, defendant’s counsel; and an |

Assistant United States Attorhey;-knowingly violates or fails to

19
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perform any of defendant's obllgatlons undeér thls agreérmiéent (Ya
breach"), the USAO may declare this agreement breached. For
example, if defendant know1ngly, in an 1nterv1ew, before a grand

jury, or at trlal, falsely accuses'another person of crlmlnal

another, in criminal conduct, defendant will have breached this
.agreement All of defendant's obllgatlons'are-materlal, aA31ngle
breach of thls agreement is sufficient for the USAO to declare a
breach, and defendant shall not be deemed to have cured a breach
without the express agreement of the USAOvln wrltlng. If the
_USAOddeclares this\agreementlbreached, and the Court finds such a
breach to have occurred, then:

a) If defendant has previously entered a guilty plea

I pursuant to this agreement, defendant will not be able to

withdraw the'guilty plea. '

b) The USAO will be relieved of all its obligations
under this agreement; in particular, the USAO: (i) will no longer
be bound by'any agreements concerning sentencing and will be free
to seek any sentence up to the statutory max1mum for the crime to
-whlch defendant has pleaded guilty; (ii) w1ll no longer be- bound
by‘any agreements regarding criminal prosecution, and will be
free to criminally proeecute defendant for any crime, including
charges that the USAO would otherwise have been obligated not to

criminally prosecute pursuant to this agreement; and (iii) will

20

conduct or falsely minimizes defendant’s own role, or the role of |




NN DR RN NN R R | e
D a0 e W N PO © o e e W NP O

Case 2:13-cr-00498-JFW Document 8 Filed 07/22/13 Page 21 of 33 Page ID #:45

hé longetr bé bound byléhy edfeeméﬁﬁ.fééafding the uéeeéf
Cooperatioannfdrmatiop and will be free.te use any Coopefation
Infdrmation in any way iﬁ'any investigafion,veriminal
‘prosecution, or Civil, administrative; or regqlatoryiection.i'
c) The USRO will be free to eriminally prosecute
defendant forifalSe stdtément,‘obstrUction ef jdstice,_and
.perjury based on any Enowingly false er misleading'stafement by _
defendant. |
d) 'In any investigation, crimipal proeecution, or

civil, administrative, or regulatory action: (i) defendaﬁt willv
‘not assert, and hereby waives and gives up, any claim Fhat'anyk
Cooperation Infoimation was obtained-id-violation ef the Fifth
Amehdment privilege against compelled self-incrimination; and
(ii) defendant agrees that any Cooperation Information and any
.élee Idformetion, as_ﬁell as any evidence derived from any
Cooperatidn Infbrmation of’any Plea Information; shall be
admissible'agaiﬁst defendant, and defehdant will not essert, and
_hereby waives and gives up,.any claim'uﬁder the United States
Cbnstitution, any statute, Rdle 410 of the Federal Rules of
Evidence, Rdle.ll(f) of the Federel-Rules of Criﬁinal Procedure,
or eny'other federal rule, that any Cdeperation_lnformation, any‘
Plea Information, or ahy eﬁidence derived from.eny'Cooperation
Ipformation'or any Plea.Informafion should'be Suppressedvor is

inadmissible.

21
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30; Follow1ng the Court’s flndlng 6f a knowlng breach of
thlS agreement by defendant, should the USAO choose to pursue any |
charge or any c1v11, administrative, or regulatory actlon that
was'elther.dlsmlssed or not filed as a result of this agreement,
then: |

| a)’Defendant agrees -that any applicable statute of-.

limitations is tolled between’the date.of'defendant;s signinq'of
this‘agreement.and the filing commenclng any such action.

Vb) Defendant waives and gives up all defenses based on
‘the statute of llmltatlons, any clalm of pre- -indictment delay, or
any speedy_trial claim with respect to any.such action, except to
‘the extent that,such defenses existed as of the date of
'defendant's signing this agreement.

COURT AND PROBATION OFFICE NOT PARTIES

3l. Defendant understands that the Court and the United
‘States'Probation Office are not parties to this agreement and’
need not -accept any of the USAOQ's sentencing recommendations or
‘the partles’ agreements to facts or senten01ng factors

32.  Defendant understands that both defendant and the USAO
are free to: (a) supplement the facts by supplying relevant
information to the United States Probatlon Offlce and the Court,
(b) correct any .and all factual mlsstatements relatlng to the
'Court’s Sentenclng Guldellnes_calculatlons, and (c) argue on

appeal and collateral review that the Court’s Sentencing

22
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Guldellnes calculatlons aré not iR &rFof, although gach party
agrees to maintain its views that the calculatlons in paragraph
18 are consistent ‘with the facts of thls case. While this
‘paragraph'permits both the USAO and defendant to submit full and
vconplete'factual information to the United StatesdProbation
Office and theVCourt,Aeven-if that factual.information may‘be
viewed as. 1ncon51stent w1th the facts agreed to in thlS
-agreement, thlS paragraph does not affect defendant’s and the
USAQ' s obllgatlonS'not-to contest the facts agreed to in this
'agreement. | | |

33; Defendant understands‘that even if the Court ignores
any]sentencing-recommendation, finds facts or reaches conciusions
dlfferent from those agreed to, and/or imposes any sentence up to
the maximum establlshed by statute, defendant cannot, for that
reason; w1thdraW'defendant’S‘gullty plea, and defendant will
_remain bound to fulfill all defendant’s ohligations under this
agreement Defendant understands that no one - not the
prosecutor, defendant’s attorney, or the Court - can make a
binding prediction or promise regarding the sentence defendant

will receive, except_that it will be within the statutory

N maximum.

NO ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS.
34. Defendant understands that,_except as set forth herein,

’there'areyno promises, understandings, or agreements between the -

23
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UsAO and defsndant of dsfendant’s attorney, and that A5
additibnéi promise, undérstandihg, or agreement may-be entered-
iinto.unless_in‘a writing>signedAby all parties or on the record
in court. | | |
PLEA AGREEMEﬁT PART OF THE GdiLTY PLEA HEARING

35. The parties agree'that this agreement will bgvv
'cénéidered part of the record of-defendant;s guilty plea hearing
'as if the eﬁtire agreéement had been réad into the record of -the
proceeding. |
AGREED AND ACCEPTED

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY'’S OFFICE
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

'ANDRE BZRORTE, JR.
Attorney

g

SANDRA R. BROWN ' ' Date !
‘Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Tax Division’

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
"TAX DIVISION

KATHRYN KENEALLY _
A551stant Attorney General

JOHN E. SULLIVAN - : . Date
Senior Litigation Counsel "
ELIZABETH C. HADDEN

Assistant Chief

24
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1 CERTIYFI.CATION O’F‘D_EFENDANT
% 2 ‘ I have'read-this.agreement in its entirety. I have'hadA
3 enough timé.to review and consider this agreemeﬁt, and I have
'2' carefully and thoroughly discussed every paft of it with ﬁy'
' 6 attorney.. I understand the termé of.this agreement;:and I
'7 .voluntafily ag;ee_to'thOSe terms. I have‘discuSSed,the évidence
g | with my attorney, and my attorney has advised me of m? rights, of
9 possible pretrial motions that might be~fiied,.df possible
10 defensés'that ﬁight'be asserted either~ptior to ér at triél,IOf
11 'the éentencihg factors.sét forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(3), of |
. 12 rélevant'éentencing Guidé;ines provisions, and of the
14 »édnsequences of enfering into this ag;eement. No.promiSes,
15-:indﬁcements, or representations of any kind have been made‘to me
16 6ther.thén'those contained in this agreement. No one has
17' threatened ériforced me in any-Wéf to enter into this agreement.
i8 I am-satisfied-with.the representatidn of my attorney in this
19 matter,'and I am'pleading guilty because I am guilty bf.the B
z: .charge'and wish to take advantage of the promises set forth‘in
vy this agregment} and not'for.any other reason.
] i —— N Juby—1-203
24 | A2RON COHEN . - Date I '
! Defendant R
25
! 26
| 27
28
25‘
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CERTTFTC‘TTON‘OF-ﬁEFENDANT'g ATTORNEY

I em AARON COHEN’s‘ettbrney. "I have carefully and
thoroughlyvdisCussed'every parﬁ of~this,agreement withlmy client.
Further, I have fully advised my clieht of his rights, of .
pessible pretriai motions that’might be filed, ef-possible
defenees'that might be asserted either prier to or at trial; of
:the senﬁencing factoié set forth in 18 U;S;C. § 3553(a), of
vrele%ant Senteﬁcing Guideiines provisions, end.of‘the
cpnseqﬁences'of-entering into this agreement. To.my knowledge:
no'promises,.induCemeﬁts, or-representations of any kind_have
been madeﬂﬁe my client other than thoee contained in this
agreement;_no one has.threatened~or forced my.ciient in any way
to eﬁter into thiseagreement; my client’s decision to enter into
this agreement is an infermed and voluntery one} and thevfactual
basis set forth in this egreement is sufficient to support my

client’

entry of a gullty plea pursuant to this agreement

| A /f% [ 203
JAM‘?’ W. SPERTUS, ESQ. Qhte
Couysel for Defendant . : :

AARON COHEN

26
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ATTACHMENT A
STATEMENT OF FACTS
Defendant AARON COHEN (“COHEN”) was born in BUENOS Alres,
Argentina in 1954. 1In 1972, after_graduatlng from high school,

COHEN moved to Israel, where he resided until he moved to Mexico

in 1981. In 1983, COHEN moved to Los Angeles, California, where

he currently resides. COHEN has been a United States citizen for

|l approximately twenty years.

During the relevant time period, COHEN‘and his brother each
owned 50% of a company that 1mported brand name perfumes and

cosmetlcs, Wthh were then sold to retallers and dlstrlbutors in.

the United States and Mexico.

Sometime in the late 1980s or early 1990s, while on a
business trip to Mexico, COHEN was introduced to a banker at a

branch of Bank A in'Mexico City, Mexico. This banker offered to

-open a personal account for COHEN at Bank A in Mex1co and COHEN

opened’ an 1nd1v1dual account at Bank A in Mexico through thlS

banker. .COHEN opened this individual account with $700,QOO,

which was money owned by COHEN, his brother, their father, and

other family members .

In or about 1994, the banker at Bank A in Mexico told COHEN

that if he had an account located in the Virgin Islands; COHEN

could then borrow-money from Bank A in Los Angeles using the
funds in the Virgin Islands as collateral. COHEN's business was

growing and he thought he could use extra working capital, and
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responded that he wanted to borrow money from Bank A in Los

Angeles. In 1995, COHEN signed paperwork prepared'by Bank A.that

created an entity-in the British Virgin IsléndsACélled Fluvia -
Holdings‘Ltd._(“Fluvié Holdings”), and opened a Bank aécount at’
Bank A in the éayman Islands. All of the papérwdrk to create
Fluvia Hoidingé and open'the account waé»prepéfed by Baﬁk A;-_

COHEN signed 'some of the documents to open the account in Los

Angeles, California. After.opening the account, COHEN dealt with

bankers at Bank A in Tel Aviv, Israel, to manage the account.
OVer the years, COHEN deposited additional fuﬁds into the
Fluvia Holdings aCdbunt'that beldnged to COHEN -and his brother[

and both COHEN and his brother each owned 50% of the additional

“funds deposited.into the Fluvia Holdings bank account.

' In or about 2000, COHEN began uéing’the funds in the

undeclared accounts in the Cayman Islands as collateral for

'ﬁback—tq—back” loans obtained ftom‘the_Los Angeles branch of Bank

A. COHEN's oWnershib of the funds in the Cayman Islands acdounts

_Was not identified in the loan records maintained at the Los -

Angeles branch of Bank A, thus concealing the fact that he was

“borrowing” his own money, paying tax-deductible interest on the
, oney | _

loans, and not reporting the interest income he was earning on

the offshore funds.

In late 2003 or early 2004, bankers at Bank A in Israel
advised COHEN to transfer the funds from the Fluvia Holdings

account to a new account in the name of a new entity. COHEN had

o
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visited Bank A in Israei while traveling in Israel for-personal

' Government.

.Angeles;'California. During these'visité, Bankef 1 would show
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reasdné, and duringAthis Visit bankers at Baﬁk’Aftold COHEN thét
itvwas vabout timevto ciose Fluvia-and_o§en a new entiﬁygﬁ The.
bankeré'éaid_thaﬁ it was dangerous at the timé to have an4accoﬁnt
in the name of,é British-vifgiqilslands cdmpaﬁy and ﬁhat'
cénVertihg the account' to atnew‘accoﬁnt would be éafef. VCOHEN
agreed to.close the.Fiﬁvia aécdunt and use-a_new'entity.becausé

he wanted his offshore accounts to remain secret from the U.S.

Bank‘A‘then arranged fof the prepafation-Of-the_paperwork
nécesséry to gféate a new company and a‘ﬁew‘accoupt, and
preéented it toACOHEN, which.he-signed on-February-zs, 2003. The
new éompany was a Turks and Caicos islahds.entity called
Cémbridge Development Ltd. (“Cambridge Develbpment”), and thevnew
acco@nt was opened at Bank Aiin fhe Cayman islands. The -
ﬁaperwork,included placing a maii hold on the account, which
bankers at-Bank A said was customary and recommended,-aﬁd which
fuftherfensured'thatvthe account would remain secret from the
U.S. Government. |

| During 2002 through 2007, COﬁEN‘would receive unanﬁounced
Visits from Bénker 1, anbinternational accounts manager with Bank

A in Israel, once or twice every year at COHEN's office in Los

COHEN bank statements for the Fluvia Holdings and Cambridge

Development accounts.
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‘branch of Bank A would not renew COHEN's back-to-back loans, and

‘that the.loans needed to be paid back. After negotlatlng an

“or about September 2008.

‘business  in Los Angeles. In or about April 2009, COHEN and his

eoffshore funds from Bank A to Bank B, COHEN and his brother used

‘and then Bank B, and that this interest income should be declared

to report this interest 1ncome on thelr Forms 1040 U.S.

the years 2006 through 2011, the highest aggregate balance..
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In or about 2008, COHEN was informed that the Los Angeles

extension of time, COHEN and his brother pald back the loans in

For many years, COHEN and his brother had maintained a
commercial line of credit from a second Israeli bank, Bank B,

that was Secured by accounts receivable and_inventory‘from their

brother transferred approximately $2 million from the Cambridgev
Development account at'Bank A in the Cayman Islands to a new

offshore account at Bank B in Israel After transferring the

the funds aS<collateral to obtain a back-to-back loan from the
Los.Angeles branch of Bank B, which was provided to the COHENS as
in increase in thelr llne of credit.

4Dur1ng the relevant time perlod COHEN knew that he was

earning interest on the funds in the foreign accounts at Bank A,
on his United States tax returns. COHEN and his brother failed
Individual Income Tax Returns, which were filed.with the IRS.

For tax years 2006 through 2009, COHEN failed to report $238,072

of interest 1ncome, resulting in a tax loss of $66,660. During

-l -
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belonging to COHEN and his brother in the undeclared accounts at

Development was at least $3,450,000.

5
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. PROOF OF SERVICE BY MAILING -

I am over the-age of 18 and not a party to the within action. I

~am employed by the Office of the United'States'Attorney, Central

District of CalifOrnia."My.businesé address is 300 North Los Angeles

Street, Suite 7211, Los Angeles, California 90012.

’ on July 22, 2013, I served
PLEA.AGREEMENT_EOR DEFENDANT'AARON COHEﬁ
on each persoh or entity name below by enclosing a copy.in an envelope
addressed as shown below and plécing‘the envelope'fof collection and
mailing on the date and at the place shown béiow fbllowing our -
ordinarQ'office practicés. I am readily familiar with the praqtice of,
this éfficenﬁor cdlleétibﬁ and précessing correspondence for mailing.

. .

On the same day that cdorrespondence is’placed for collection and

mailing, it is deposited in the ordinary course ofvbusiness_With the

United States Postal Service in d sealed envelope with postage fully

pfepaid. Date of mailing: Julv'ggL_gbl3

Place of mailing: Los Angeles, California

See attached list
I declare under penalty.of perjury under the.laws of the United Stétes
of Ameriéa that the foregoing is'true_éhd correct.’

I declare that I am employed ip the officé of a member of the bar
of this court at whose direction the service was made.

_Executed on: July ggL_2013; Loé‘Angeles, California;>

Barbara Le

I/
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| RE: UNITED STATES OF AMERICA v. AARON COHEN

James W. Spertus
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Servicé List

8ertus, Landes & Umhofer, LLP
1990 South Bundy Drive, Suite 705
Los Angeles CA~ 90025




